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iROBOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

(unaudited)
 

April 1, 2023 December 31, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 47,915 $ 117,949 
Accounts receivable, net 29,645 66,025 
Inventory 229,688 285,250 
Other current assets 56,987 59,076 

   Total current assets 364,235 528,300 
Property and equipment, net 55,774 60,909 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 25,443 26,084 
Deferred tax assets 15,226 16,248 
Goodwill 169,570 167,724 
Intangible assets, net 10,919 11,260 
Other assets 23,460 24,918 

   Total assets $ 664,627 $ 835,443 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 74,014 $ 184,016 
Accrued expenses 100,902 98,959 
Deferred revenue and customer advances 12,084 13,208 
Short-term notes payable 27,000 — 

   Total current liabilities 214,000 296,183 
Operating lease liabilities 31,581 33,247 
Deferred tax liabilities 526 931 
Other long-term liabilities 23,081 29,366 

   Total long-term liabilities 55,188 63,544 
   Total liabilities 269,188 359,727 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Preferred stock, 5,000 shares authorized and none outstanding — — 
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized; 27,594 and 27,423 shares issued and outstanding,
respectively 276 274 
Additional paid-in capital 263,837 257,498 
Retained earnings 118,303 199,415 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 13,023 18,529 

   Total stockholders’ equity 395,439 475,716 
   Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 664,627 $ 835,443 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

3



 

iROBOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

 

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Revenue $ 160,292 $ 291,969 
Cost of revenue:
Cost of product revenue 123,459 183,633 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 282 821 

Total cost of revenue 123,741 184,454 
Gross profit 36,551 107,515 
Operating expenses:

Research and development 41,934 42,529 
Selling and marketing 44,765 61,065 
General and administrative 30,971 26,698 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 178 510 

Total operating expenses 117,848 130,802 
Operating loss (81,297) (23,287)
Other expense, net (1,077) (16,746)
Loss before income taxes (82,374) (40,033)
Income tax benefit (1,262) (9,627)
Net loss $ (81,112) $ (30,406)
Net loss per share:

Basic $ (2.95) $ (1.12)
Diluted $ (2.95) $ (1.12)

Number of shares used in per share calculations:
Basic 27,467 27,051 
Diluted 27,467 27,051 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Net loss $ (81,112) $ (30,406)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Net foreign currency translation adjustments 1,720 (4,015)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax (1,823) 7,653 
Net gains on cash flow hedge reclassified into earnings, net of tax (5,403) (1,234)

Total comprehensive loss $ (86,618) $ (28,002)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In

 Capital
Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

 Comprehensive
 Income ("AOCI")

Total
Stockholders’

 EquityShares Value
Balance at December 31, 2022 27,423 $ 274 $ 257,498 $ 199,415 $ 18,529 $ 475,716 
Issuance of common stock under employee
stock plans 9 — 9 9 
Vesting of restricted stock units 199 2 (2) — 
Stock-based compensation 7,932 7,932 
Stock withheld to cover tax withholdings
requirements upon restricted stock vesting (37) — (1,600) (1,600)
Other comprehensive loss (5,506) (5,506)
Net loss (81,112) (81,112)
Balance at April 1, 2023 27,594 $ 276 $ 263,837 $ 118,303 $ 13,023 $ 395,439 

Common Stock Additional
 Paid-In

 Capital
Retained

 Earnings

Accumulated
 Other

 Comprehensive
 Income ("AOCI")

Total
Stockholders’

 EquityShares Value
Balance at January 1, 2022 27,006 $ 270 $ 222,653 $ 485,710 $ 8,090 $ 716,723 
Issuance of common stock under employee
stock plans 23 — 797 797 
Vesting of restricted stock units 112 1 (1) — 
Stock-based compensation 7,208 7,208 
Stock withheld to cover tax withholdings
requirements upon restricted stock vesting (25) — (1,524) (1,524)
Other comprehensive income 2,404 2,404 
Net loss (30,406) (30,406)
Balance at April 2, 2022 27,116 $ 271 $ 229,133 $ 455,304 $ 10,494 $ 695,202 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (81,112) $ (30,406)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,542 11,241 
Loss on equity investment — 16,835 
Stock-based compensation 7,932 7,208 
Deferred income taxes, net 647 (15,571)
Other (3,562) 1,539 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities — (use) source
Accounts receivable 37,147 54,299 
Inventory 52,947 (1,688)
Other assets 53 (26,734)
Accounts payable (109,930) (77,006)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (6,171) (42,032)

Net cash used in operating activities (94,507) (102,315)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Additions of property and equipment (1,456) (3,113)
Purchase of investments (73) (500)
Sales and maturities of investments — 16,213 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1,529) 12,600 
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from employee stock plans 9 797 
Income tax withholding payment associated with restricted stock vesting (1,600) (1,524)
Proceeds from borrowings 27,000 — 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 25,409 (727)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 593 1,023 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (70,034) (89,419)
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 117,949 201,457 
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 47,915 $ 112,038 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

1. Nature of the Business

iRobot Corporation ("iRobot" or the "Company") designs, builds and sells robots and home innovations that make life better. The Company's portfolio of
home robots and smart home devices features proprietary technologies for the connected home and advanced concepts in cleaning, mapping and navigation,
human-robot interaction and physical solutions. iRobot's durable and high-performing robots are designed using the close integration of software, electronics and
hardware. The Company’s revenue is primarily generated from product sales through a variety of distribution channels, including chain stores and other national
retailers, through the Company's own website and app, dedicated e-commerce websites, the online arms of traditional retailers and through value-added
distributors and resellers worldwide.

Merger Agreement

On August 4, 2022, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") by and among the Company, Amazon.com, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation ("Parent" or "Amazon") and Martin Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub"),
pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "Merger"), with the Company surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Parent. As a result of the Merger, each share of common stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per share ("Common Stock"), outstanding immediately prior to
the effective time of the Merger (the "Effective Time") (subject to certain exceptions, including shares of Common Stock owned by the Company, Merger Sub,
Parent or any of their respective direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiaries and shares of Common Stock owned by stockholders of the Company who have
validly demanded and not withdrawn appraisal rights in accordance with Section 262 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware) will, at the
Effective Time, automatically be cancelled and converted into the right to receive $61.00 in cash, without interest and subject to applicable withholding taxes. If
the Merger is consummated, the Company’s Common Stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC and deregistered under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Foreign Currency Translation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of iRobot and its subsidiaries, after elimination of all intercompany balances and
transactions. iRobot has prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America ("GAAP").

In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been made to state fairly the
Company's financial position. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for the full fiscal year or any future periods. The information included in this
Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in its Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023.

The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to December 31. Accordingly, the Company’s fiscal
quarters end on the Saturday that falls closest to the last day of the third month of each quarter.

Liquidity

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates the continuity of operations, realization of assets, and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has a long history of profitable operations, positive operating cash flows and substantial liquidity that was further strengthened during the first
year of the COVID-19 pandemic as consumer demand for iRobot's products increased considerably. For the three months ended April 1, 2023, the Company’s
revenue declined 45% from the three months ended April 2, 2022 due in part by a scheduled shift of certain orders with a customer which occurred in the first
quarter of 2022 and are scheduled to ship in the second quarter of 2023 for their annual promotional event. In addition, revenue was impacted by lower orders
from retailers and distributors largely resulting from a decline in consumer sentiment, and resultant spending, driven by high inflation, rising interest rates, rising
energy costs, the potential recessionary outlook and geopolitical instability, which was exacerbated by the Russia-Ukraine war. The lower revenue has resulted in
operating losses of $81.3 million and operating cash outflows of $94.5 million for the three months ended April 1, 2023. As a result, the Company's cash and cash
equivalents have declined from $117.9 million as of December 31, 2022 to $47.9 million as of April 1, 2023.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

As of April 1, 2023, the Company had $27.0 million in outstanding borrowings from its $100.0 million revolving line of credit, which expires on September
17, 2024.

Management has considered and assessed its ability to continue as a going concern for the one year from the date that the unaudited consolidated financial
statements are issued. Management’s assessment included the preparation of cash flow forecasts taking into account actions already implemented. Management
considered additional actions within its control that it would implement, if necessary, to maintain liquidity and operations in the ordinary course. Management has
already undertaken the following actions to improve profitability and operating cash flows and align the organization to the lower revenue level:

• In August 2022, the Company initiated a restructuring of its operations designed to better realign its cost structure with near-term revenue and cash flow
generation, advance key strategic priorities, increase efficiencies and improve its profitability going forward (the "August 2022 Restructuring Plan"). As
part of the August 2022 Restructuring Plan, the Company reduced its workforce and terminated approximately 100 employees, which represented 8% of
its workforce and eliminated a number of open positions entering the third quarter of 2022. As a follow-on action to the Company’s August 2022
Restructuring Plan and in anticipation that market conditions will remain challenging in 2023, the Company initiated a new restructuring program at the
beginning of February 2023 and reduced its workforce by approximately 85 employees, which represented 7% of the Company's global workforce as of
December 31, 2022 (the "February 2023 Restructuring Plan"). In addition to the reduction in force, iRobot’s 2023 operating plan incorporates scaled back
working media and other demand-generation activities, limited investment in non-robotic product categories and minimal new hiring plans in 2023. At
April 1, 2023, the Company had 1,156 employees, a total reduction of 216 employees since the end of fiscal 2021. In addition to the reduction of its
headcount, the Company signed a sublease agreement for a portion of its headquarters during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 and plans to further
consolidate its global facilities footprint during fiscal 2023. iRobot currently anticipates that its August 2022 and February 2023 restructuring actions will
deliver net cost savings of approximately $42.0 million in 2023, including actions associated with the facilities consolidation.

• Inventory has consumed a significant amount of cash and the Company continues to manage its inventory level carefully. As of April 1, 2023, the
inventory balance was $229.7 million, or 169 days, a reduction of $55.6 million, from the end of fiscal 2022. In 2023, the Company will continue to
manage its inventory to a level that aligns with current run rates of the business. As such, iRobot temporarily reduced robot production during the first
quarter of 2023 from its contract manufacturing partners in China and Malaysia and began increasing production in April 2023.

While management estimates such actions will be sufficient to allow it to maintain liquidity and its operations in the ordinary course for at least 12 months
from the issuance of these financial statements, there can be no assurance the Company will generate sufficient future cash flows from operations due to potential
factors, including, but not limited to, further inflation, the continued rising interest rates, ongoing recessionary conditions or continued reduced demand for the
Company’s products. If the Company is not successful in increasing demand for its products, or if macroeconomic conditions further constrain consumer demand,
the Company may continue to experience adverse impacts to revenue and profitability. Additional actions within the Company’s control to maintain its liquidity
and operations include optimizing its production volumes with contract manufacturers by reducing inventory supply forecast for cancellable purchase orders,
further reducing discretionary spending in all areas of the business, decreasing working media spending and realigning resources through ongoing attrition without
rehiring activity. Should the Company require further funding in the future, there can be no assurance that it will be able to obtain additional debt financing on
terms acceptable to the Company, or at all.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or
the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In October 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2021-08, "Business Combinations -
Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers." The ASU improves the accounting for acquired revenue contracts with
customers by providing specific guidance on recognition of contract asset and liability from revenue contracts in a business combination. The amendments to this
ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2022, with early adoption permitted. The Company
adopted the standard in the first quarter of 2023 and the adoption had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB that are adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. Unless
otherwise discussed, the Company believes that recently issued standards, which are not yet effective, will not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements upon adoption.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and revenue and expenses. These estimates and judgments, include but are not limited to, revenue recognition, including
performance obligations, standalone selling price, variable consideration and other obligations such as sales incentives and product returns; allowance for credit
losses; impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets; valuation of non-marketable equity investments; product warranties; inventory excess and obsolescence;
loss contingencies; and accounting for income taxes and related valuation allowances. The Company bases its estimates and assumptions on historical experience,
market participant fair value considerations, projected future cash flows, current economic conditions, and various other factors that the Company believes are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results and outcomes may differ from the Company’s estimates and assumptions.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses for accounts receivable using an expected loss model that requires the use of forward-looking
information to calculate credit loss estimate. The expected loss methodology is developed through consideration of factors including, but not limited to, historical
collection experience, current customer credit ratings, customer concentrations, current and future economic and market conditions and age of the receivable. The
Company reviews and adjusts the allowance for credit losses on a quarterly basis. Accounts receivable balances are written off against the allowance when the
Company determines that the balances are not recoverable. As of April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had an allowance for credit losses of
$2.7 million and $4.7 million, respectively.

Tariff Refunds

In March 2022, the Company was granted a temporary exclusion from Section 301 List 3 tariffs by the United States Trade Representative ("USTR"). This
exclusion, which was subsequently extended until September 30, 2023, entitled the Company to a refund of approximately $32.0 million in tariffs paid. During the
first quarter of 2022, the Company recognized a benefit of $11.7 million from tariff refunds as a reduction to cost of product revenue related to tariffs paid on
products imported after October 12, 2021 and sold during fiscal 2021. As of April 1, 2023, the Company had received $28.0 million of the tariff refund and the
outstanding refund receivable of $4.0 million is recorded in other current assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Inventory

Inventory primarily consists of finished goods and, to a lesser extent, components, which are purchased from contract manufacturers. Inventory is stated at
the lower of cost or net realizable value with cost being determined using the standard cost method, which approximates actual costs determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Inventory costs primarily consist of materials, inbound freight, import duties and other handling fees. The Company writes down its inventory for
estimated obsolescence or excess inventory based upon assumptions around market conditions and estimates of future demand. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion, disposal and transportation. Adjustments to reduce inventory to net realizable value are recognized in
cost of revenue and have not been significant for the periods presented.

Strategic Investments

The Company holds non-marketable equity securities as part of its strategic investments portfolio. The Company classifies the majority of these securities as
equity securities without readily determinable fair values and measures these investments at cost, less any impairment, adjusted for observable price changes in
orderly transactions for identical or similar investments of the same issuer. These investments are valued using significant unobservable inputs or data in an
inactive market and the valuation requires the Company's judgment due to the absence of market prices and inherent lack of liquidity. The Company monitors
non-marketable equity investments for impairment indicators, such as deterioration in the investee's financial condition and business forecasts and lower
valuations in recent or proposed financings. The estimated fair value is based on quantitative and qualitative factors including, but not limited to, subsequent
financing activities by the investee and projected discounted cash flows. The Company performs an assessment on a quarterly basis to assess whether triggering
events for impairment exist and to identify any observable price changes. Changes in fair value of non-marketable equity investments are recorded in other
expense, net on the consolidated statement of operations. At both April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company's equity securities without readily
determinable fair values totaled $15.1 million, and are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
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iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

Restructuring Charges

In August 2022, the Company initiated a restructuring of its operations designed to realign its cost structure with near-term revenue and cash flow
generation, advance key strategy priorities, increase efficiencies and improve its profitability going forward. The August 2022 Restructuring Plan included a
termination of approximately 100 employees and consolidation of certain facilities. As a result of the August 2022 Restructuring Plan, the Company recorded
restructuring charges of $5.2 million for employee severance costs during the third quarter of 2022 and a non-cash impairment loss of $3.4 million for the
consolidation of certain facilities during the fourth quarter of 2022. As a follow-on action to the Company’s August 2022 Restructuring Plan and in anticipation
that market conditions remain challenging in 2023, the Company initiated a new restructuring program at the beginning of February 2023 to further reduce its
workforce by approximately 85 employees, which represented 7% of the Company's global workforce as of December 31, 2022. During the three months ended
April 1, 2023, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $3.7 million for employee severance and benefit costs related to the February 2023 Restructuring
Plan. As of April 1, 2023, the Company had outstanding restructuring liability related to these plans of approximately $1.9 million and expects the remaining
balance to be substantially paid during the second quarter of 2023. These restructuring charges are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated using the Company's weighted-average outstanding common shares. Diluted loss per share is calculated using the
Company's weighted-average outstanding common shares including the dilutive effect of stock awards as determined under the treasury stock method.

The following table presents the calculation of both basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except per share amounts): 

 Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Net loss $ (81,112) $ (30,406)
Weighted-average shares outstanding 27,467 27,051 
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (2.95) $ (1.12)

Employee stock awards representing approximately 1.0 million and 0.8 million shares of common stock for the three months ended April 1, 2023 and
April 2, 2022, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect would have been antidilutive.

3. Revenue Recognition

The Company primarily derives its revenue from the sale of consumer robots and accessories. The Company sells products directly to consumers through
online stores and indirectly through resellers and distributors. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is allocated to distinct performance
obligations and is recognized net of allowances for returns and other credits and incentives. Revenue is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that a
significant reversal of revenue will not occur and when collection is considered probable. Taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to
governmental authorities, are excluded from revenue. Shipping and handling expenses are considered fulfillment activities and are expensed as incurred.

Frequently, the Company’s contracts with customers contain multiple promised goods or services. Such contracts may include any of the following, the
consumer robot, downloadable app, cloud services, accessories on demand, potential future unspecified software upgrades, premium customer care and extended
warranties. For these contracts, the Company accounts for the promises separately as individual performance obligations if they are distinct. Performance
obligations are considered distinct if they are both capable of being distinct and distinct within the context of the contract. In determining whether performance
obligations meet the criteria for being distinct, the Company considers a number of factors, such as the degree of interrelation and interdependence between
obligations, and whether or not the good or service significantly modifies or transforms another good or service in the contract. The Company’s consumer robots
are highly dependent on, and interrelated with, the embedded software and cannot function without the software. As such, the consumer robots are accounted for
as a single performance obligation. The Company has determined that the app, cloud services and potential future unspecified software upgrades represent one
performance obligation to the customer to enhance the functionality and interaction with the robot (referred to collectively as "Cloud Services"). Other services
and support are considered distinct and therefore are treated as separate performance obligations.

The Company allocates revenue to all distinct performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices ("SSPs"). When available, the
Company uses observable prices to determine SSPs. When observable prices are not available,
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iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

SSPs are established that reflect the Company’s best estimates of what the selling prices of the performance obligations would be if they were sold regularly on a
stand-alone basis. The Company’s process for estimating SSPs without observable prices considers multiple factors that may vary depending upon the facts and
circumstances related to each performance obligation including market data or the estimated cost of providing the products or services. The transaction price
allocated to the robot is recognized as revenue at a point in time when control is transferred, generally as title and risk of loss pass, and when collection is
considered probable. The transaction price allocated to the Cloud Services is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated term of the Cloud
Services. Other services and support are recognized over their service periods. For contracts with a duration of greater than one year, the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was $21.4 million and $23.2 million, respectively.

The Company’s products generally carry a one-year or two-year limited warranty that promises customers that delivered products are as specified. The
Company does not consider these assurance-type warranties as a separate performance obligation and therefore, the Company accounts for such warranties under
ASC 460, "Guarantees." For contracts with the right to upgrade to a new product after a specified period of time, the Company accounts for this trade-in right as a
guarantee obligation under ASC 460. The total transaction price is reduced by the full amount of the trade-in right's fair value and the remaining transaction price
is allocated between the performance obligations within the contract.

The Company provides limited rights of returns for direct-to-consumer sales generated through its online stores and certain resellers and distributors. The
Company records an allowance for product returns based on specific terms and conditions included in the customer agreements or based on historical experience
and the Company's expectation of future returns. In addition, the Company may provide other credits or incentives which are accounted for as variable
consideration when estimating the amount of revenue to recognize. Where appropriate, these estimates take into consideration relevant factors such as the
Company’s historical experience, current contractual requirements, specific known market events and forecasted inventory level in the channels. Overall, these
reserves reflect the Company’s best estimates, and the actual amounts of consideration ultimately received may differ from the Company’s estimates. Returns and
credits are estimated at the time of sale and updated at the end of each reporting period as additional information becomes available. As of April 1, 2023, the
Company had reserves for product returns of $21.7 million and other credits and incentives of $56.8 million. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had reserves
for product returns of $49.2 million and other credits and incentives of $106.5 million. The Company regularly evaluates the adequacy of its estimates for product
returns and other credits and incentives. Future market conditions and product transitions may require the Company to take action to change such programs and
related estimates. When the variables used to estimate these reserves change, or if actual results differ significantly from the estimates, the Company increases or
reduces revenue to reflect the impact. During the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, changes to these estimates related to performance
obligations satisfied in prior periods were not material.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table provides information about disaggregated revenue by geographical region (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

United States $ 71,986 $ 153,174 
EMEA 46,681 65,661 
Japan 32,894 50,521 
Other 8,731 22,613 

Total revenue $ 160,292 $ 291,969 

Contract Balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers (in thousands):

April 1, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable, net $ 24,891 $ 60,268 
Unbilled receivables 5,284 6,569 
Contract liabilities 21,741 24,140 

The Company invoices customers based upon contractual billing schedules, and accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes
unconditional. Unbilled receivables represent revenue recognized in excess of billings. Contract liabilities include deferred revenue associated with the Cloud
Services and extended warranty plans as well as prepayments received from customers in advance of product shipments. During the three months ended April 1,
2023 and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

April 2, 2022, the Company recognized $4.2 million and $4.7 million, respectively, of the contract liability balance as revenue upon transfer of the products or
services to customers.

4. Leases

The Company's leasing arrangements primarily consist of operating leases for its facilities which include corporate, sales and marketing and research and
development offices and equipment under various non-cancelable lease arrangements. The operating leases expire at various dates through 2030. At April 1, 2023,
the Company's weighted average discount rate was 4.03%, while the weighted average remaining lease term was 6.53 years.

The components of lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Operating lease cost $ 1,715 $ 851 
Variable lease cost 825 918 

Total lease cost $ 2,540 $ 1,769 

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 2,008 $ 2,039 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases $ — $ — 

Maturities of operating lease liabilities were as follows as of April 1, 2023 (in thousands):

Remainder of 2023 $ 5,279 
2024 6,618 
2025 5,794 
2026 5,816 
2027 5,890 
Thereafter 13,048 
Total minimum lease payments $ 42,445 
Less: imputed interest 5,356 
Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 37,089 
Less: current portion of operating lease liabilities (Note 7) $ 5,508 
Long-term lease liabilities $ 31,581 
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5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows (in thousands):

 
Fair Value Measurements as of

 April 1, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 (1) Level 3

Assets:
Money market funds $ 33,482 $ — $ — 
Derivative instruments (Note 9) — 1,878 — 

Total assets measured at fair value $ 33,482 $ 1,878 $ — 

Liabilities:
Derivative instruments (Note 9) $ — $ 9,038 $ — 

Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — $ 9,038 $ — 

 
Fair Value Measurements as of

 December 31, 2022
 Level 1 Level 2 (1) Level 3

Assets:
Money market funds $ 79,005 $ — $ — 
Derivative instruments (Note 9) — 5,619 — 

Total assets measured at fair value $ 79,005 $ 5,619 $ — 

Liabilities:
Derivative instruments (Note 9) $ — $ 13,793 $ — 

Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — $ 13,793 $ — 

(1) Level 2 fair value estimates are based on observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the activity in the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets for the three months ended April 1, 2023 (in
thousands):

Goodwill Intangible assets

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 167,724 $ 11,260 
Amortization — (460)
Effect of foreign currency translation 1,846 119 
Balance as of April 1, 2023 $ 169,570 $ 10,919 
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7. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following at (in thousands):

April 1, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accrued warranty $ 24,618 $ 27,379 
Accrued compensation and benefits 16,095 17,620 
Accrued returns and sales incentives 14,909 1,312 
Accrued merger related liabilities 11,791 10,895 
Derivative liability 7,202 7,310 
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 5,508 5,415 
Accrued manufacturing and logistics cost 4,516 970 
Accrued bonus 4,190 4,538 
Accrued sales and other indirect taxes payable 2,898 7,683 
Accrued income taxes 350 5,070 
Accrued other 8,825 10,767 

$ 100,902 $ 98,959 

8. Working Capital Facility

Credit Facility

As of April 1, 2023, the Company had a $100.0 million secured revolving line of credit which expires in September 2024. On January 17, 2023, the
Company entered into a Fourth Amendment (the "Fourth Amendment") to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as amended, the "Credit Agreement")
with Bank of America N.A., which reduced the amount of the facility from $150.0 million to $100.0 million and increased the interest rate of (1) Term SOFR
Loans to 4.50%, (2) Base Rate Loans to 3.50%, and (3) unused Commitments (as defined in the Credit Agreement) to 3.50%. In addition, the Fourth Amendment
established a borrowing base for the revolving facility equal to the total of 80% of eligible receivables, 50% of eligible inventory, and upon the satisfaction of
certain conditions, up to 30% of eligible in-transit inventory, all subject to any applicable reserves. Additionally, the Fourth Amendment requires the Company to
maintain $25.0 million of cash in the U.S. at all times, which is tested monthly, and replaced the requirement that the borrowing under the Credit Agreement be
under $75.0 million (1) on December 30, 2022 and (2) for ten consecutive days during the first quarter in 2023 with a requirement that the borrowing under the
Credit Agreement be $25.0 million or less (1) on December 29, 2023 and (2) for thirty consecutive days between January 17, 2023 and September 17, 2024. The
Fourth Amendment also extended the maturity date of the Credit Agreement from June 30, 2023 to September 17, 2024, and continues to be secured by
substantially all of its U.S. assets.

As of April 1, 2023, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $27.0 million under the revolving credit facility, with $73.0 million available for
borrowing. As of April 1, 2023, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the Credit Agreement.

9. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into derivative instruments that are designated as cash flow hedges to reduce its exposure to foreign currency exchange risk in sales.
These contracts have historically had a maturity of three years or less. During the first quarter of 2023, the Company terminated foreign currency forward
contracts with a notional value of $151.7 million, resulting in a net cash payment of $2.5 million which was recognized within cash used in operating activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Amounts previously recorded in AOCI were frozen at the time of termination, and will be recognized in earnings when
the original forecasted transaction occurs. At April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding cash flow hedges with a total notional value of
$181.7 million and $362.9 million, respectively. The outstanding contracts have average maturities of 1.5 years or less.

The Company also enters into economic hedges that are not designated as hedges from an accounting standpoint to reduce foreign currency exchange risk
related to short term trade receivables and payables. These contracts typically have maturities of twelve months or less. At April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
the Company had outstanding foreign currency economic hedges with a total notional value of $124.9 million and $242.0 million, respectively.
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The fair values of derivative instruments were as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value
Classification April 1, 2023 December 31, 2022

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts Other current assets $ 1,878 $ 4,288 
Foreign currency forward contracts Accrued expenses 1,525 3,249 
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:
Foreign currency forward contracts Other assets $ — $ 1,331 
Foreign currency forward contracts Accrued expenses 5,677 4,061 
Foreign currency forward contracts Long-term liabilities 1,836 6,483 

(Loss) gain associated with derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
Classification April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

(Loss) gain recognized in income Other expense, net $ (811) $ 2,064 

 
The following tables reflect the effect of derivatives designated as cash flow hedging (in thousands): 

(Loss) gain recognized in OCI on Derivative (1)
Three Months Ended

April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Foreign currency forward contracts $ (1,823) $ 10,257 

(1) The amount represents the change in fair value of derivative contracts due to changes in spot rates.

Gain recognized in earnings on cash flow hedging
instruments

Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Revenue

Consolidated statements of operations in which the effects of cash flow hedging instruments are recorded $ 160,292 $ 291,969 

Gain on cash flow hedging relationships:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

Amount of gain reclassified from AOCI into earnings $ 5,403 $ 1,639 

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

From time to time and in the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to various claims, charges and litigation. The outcome of litigation cannot
be predicted with certainty and some lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably to us, which could materially affect our financial condition
or results of operations.

Outstanding Purchase Orders

As of April 1, 2023, the Company had outstanding purchase orders aggregating approximately $228.7 million. The purchase orders are typically related to
marketing and media spend and the purchase of inventory in the normal course of business. Included in these outstanding purchase orders is $82.5 million related
to inventory purchases at the Company's contract manufacturers, of which $43.1 million are not cancellable without penalty.

16



iROBOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

The Company utilizes contract manufacturers to build its products and accessories. These contract manufacturers acquire components and build products
based on a forecasted production plan, which typically covers a rolling 24-month period. If the Company cancels all or part of the orders, or materially reduces
forecasted orders, in certain circumstances the Company may be liable to its contract manufacturers for the cost of the excess components purchased by its
contract manufacturers. During the first quarter of 2023, the Company paid $3.9 million to its contract manufacturers for such liabilities and recorded as inventory
components.

Guarantees and Indemnification Obligations

The Company enters into standard indemnification agreements in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company indemnifies
and agrees to reimburse the indemnified party for losses incurred by the indemnified party, generally the Company’s customers, in connection with any patent,
copyright, trade secret or other proprietary right infringement claim by any third party. The term of these indemnification agreements is generally perpetual any
time after execution of the agreement. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification
agreements is unlimited. The Company has never incurred costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements. As a result, the
Company believes the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly, the Company had no liabilities recorded for these agreements as
of April 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Warranty

The Company provides warranties on most products and has established a reserve for warranty obligations based on estimated warranty costs. The reserve is
included as part of accrued expenses (Note 7) in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.    

Activity related to the warranty accrual was as follows (in thousands):

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Balance at beginning of period $ 27,379 $ 32,019 
Provision 3,477 6,036 
Warranty usage (6,238) (7,816)
Balance at end of period $ 24,618 $ 30,239 

Merger Contingencies

On August 4, 2022, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with Amazon.com, Inc., subject to the terms of which Amazon has agreed to acquire
the Company. The Merger is conditioned upon, among other things, the expiration of the applicable waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended ("HSR Act"), certain other approvals, clearances or expirations of waiting periods under other
antitrust laws and foreign investment laws, and other customary closing conditions. On September 19, 2022, the Company and Amazon each received a request
for additional information and documentary material (the "Second Request") from the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") in connection with the FTC's review of
the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The effect of the Second Request is to extend the waiting period imposed by the HSR Act, until 30 days
after the Company and Amazon have substantially complied with the Second Request, unless that period is extended voluntarily by the parties or terminated
sooner by the FTC. The Company and Amazon continue to work cooperatively with the FTC staff in its review of the Merger. Completion of the Merger remains
subject to the expiration or termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act.

At a special meeting of stockholders of the Company on October 17, 2022, stockholders approved the Merger. In connection with the transaction, the
Company expects to incur professional fees and expenses of approximately $30.0 million that are contingent upon consummation of the Merger.
11. Income Taxes

The Company’s interim provision for income taxes is determined using an estimate of the annual effective tax rate. The Company records any changes
affecting the estimated annual effective tax rate in the interim period in which the change occurs. The Company also records the tax effects of certain discrete
items during the interim period in which they occur.

For the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $1.3 million and $9.6 million, respectively. The
Company’s effective income tax rates were 1.5% and 24.0% for the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, respectively. For the three months ended
April 1, 2023, the effective income tax rate reflected the mix of geographic earnings as well as the impact of full valuation allowance against the Company's U.S.
net deferred tax assets, which was initially established during the third quarter of 2022.
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In assessing the realizability of its U.S. deferred tax assets, the key factors used to determine positive and negative evidence included its recent losses
resulting in cumulative loss for the three-year period ended December 31, 2022, current macroeconomic trends, and expected future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences. Such objective negative evidence limits the Company's ability to consider other subjective evidence, such as its projections for future
growth. Given the weight of objectively verifiable historical losses from the Company's U.S. operations, the Company established a full valuation reserve against
its net U.S. federal and state deferred tax assets and recorded a valuation allowance of $57.5 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2022. During the three months
ended April 1, 2023, the Company determined that this conclusion continued to be appropriate. A valuation allowance is a non-cash charge, and does not limit the
Company’s ability to utilize its deferred tax assets, including its ability to utilize tax loss and credit carryforward amounts, against future taxable income. The
amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, and the associated valuation allowance, could be adjusted in a future period if estimates of future taxable
income change or if objective negative evidence in the form of cumulative losses is no longer present and additional weight is given to subjective evidence such as
projections for future growth.

12. Industry Segment, Geographic Information and Significant Customers

The Company operates as one operating segment. The Company's consumer robots are offered to consumers through a variety of distribution channels,
including chain stores and other national retailers, through the Company's own website and app, dedicated e-commerce websites, the online arms of traditional
retailers, and through value-added distributors and resellers worldwide.

Significant Customers

For the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, the Company generated 12.0% and 26.6%, respectively, of total revenue from one of its
retailers. The decrease in concentration is largely due to timing of certain orders with this customer, which occurred in the first quarter of 2022 and are scheduled
to ship in the second quarter of 2023 for their annual promotional event.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information contained in this section has been derived from our consolidated financial statements and should be read together with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Exchange Act"), and are subject to the "safe harbor" created by those sections. In particular, statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
that are not historical facts, including, but not limited to, statements concerning our pending acquisition by Amazon, expectations regarding the timing of the
Merger, new product sales, product development and offerings, ability to address consumer needs, the expansion of our addressable market, factors for
differentiation of our products, our consumer robots, our competition, our strategy, our market position, market acceptance of our products, revenue recognition,
our profits, growth of our revenues, composition of our revenues, our cost of revenues, units shipped, average selling prices, the impact of promotional activity
and tariffs, the timing of and ability to recover tariff refund claims, operating expenses, selling and marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
research and development expenses, and compensation costs, our credit and letter of credit facilities, efforts to mitigate supply chain challenges, liquidity and the
impact of cost-control measures and the amount of restructuring charges and cost savings related to such activities, constitute forward-looking statements and are
made under these safe harbor provisions. Some of the forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terms such as "believes,"
"expects," "may," "will," "should," "could," "seek," "intends," "plans," "estimates," "anticipates," or other comparable terms and negative forms of such terms.
Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements. We urge you to consider the risks and uncertainties discussed in greater detail under the heading "Risk Factors" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q and in Part 1, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 in evaluating our forward-looking
statements. We have no plans to update our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this report. We caution readers not to
place undue reliance upon any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made.

Overview

iRobot is a leading global consumer robot company that designs and builds robots that empower people to do more. With over 30 years of artificial
intelligence ("AI") and advanced robotics experience, we are focused on building thoughtful robots and developing intelligent home innovations that help make
life better for millions of people around the world. iRobot's portfolio of home robots and smart home devices features proprietary technologies for the connected
home and advanced concepts in cleaning, mapping and navigation, human-robot interaction and physical solutions. Leveraging this portfolio, we plan to add new
capabilities and expand our offerings to help consumers make their homes easier to maintain, more efficient, more secure and healthier places to live.

As of April 1, 2023, we had 1,156 full-time employees. Since our founding in 1990, we have developed the expertise necessary to design, build, sell and
support durable, high-performance and cost-effective robots through the close integration of software, electronics and hardware. Following the introduction of the
Roomba robotic vacuum cleaner in 2002, we have sold nearly 50 million consumer robots worldwide to become a global, market-leading consumer robotics
innovator with a strong presence in a number of major geographic regions worldwide. Our core technologies serve as reusable building blocks that we adapt and
expand to create next-generation robotic platforms. We believe that this approach accelerates the time to market, while also reducing the costs, time and other risks
associated with product development. These capabilities are amplified by iRobot OS, an evolution of our Genius Home Intelligence platform. The software
intelligence of iRobot OS powers our portfolio of connected robotic floor care products, enabling an expanding range of new features and thoughtful digital
experiences that improve overall cleaning performance, personalization and control. By leveraging our considerable expertise and ongoing investment in AI, home
understanding and machine vision technologies, iRobot OS provides consumers with greater control over where, when and how our robots work, simple
integration with other smart home devices, thoughtful recommendations to further enhance the cleaning experience, and the ability to share and transfer home
knowledge across multiple iRobot robots. We believe that the capabilities within iRobot OS will support our long-term vision of building out a larger ecosystem
that encompasses a broader range of adjacent robotic and smart home categories. We believe that our significant expertise in robot design, engineering, and smart
home technologies and targeted focus on understanding and addressing consumer needs, positions us well to expand our total addressable market and capitalize on
the anticipated growth in a wider range of robotic and smart home categories.

To continue expanding our business globally and increase our profitability in a highly competitive marketplace, we have continued to make progress on each
key element of our strategy: innovate, get, keep and grow. In September 2022, we introduced the Roomba Combo j7+, an advanced floor cleaning robot that can
vacuum and mop, in the U.S. and EMEA, along with thoughtful iRobot OS updates globally. During the first quarter of 2023, we also introduced Roomba Combo
j7+ in Japan. In addition, we continued to expand our connected customer base, maintained overall high levels of customer satisfaction and product utilization,
and advanced key commercial activities aimed at increasing existing customer revenue, especially through
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our direct-to-consumer channel. During the first quarter of 2023, our connected customers who have opted-in to our digital communications grew to 18.3 million,
an increase of 23% from the first quarter of 2022.

Our total revenue for the three months ended April 1, 2023 was $160.3 million, declining 45.1% from revenue of $292.0 million for the three months ended
April 2, 2022. Geographically, domestic revenue declined by $81.2 million, or 53.0%, and international revenue declined by $50.5 million, or 36.4%. Revenue
during the first quarter of 2023 was impacted by a scheduled shift of certain orders with a customer which occurred in the first quarter of 2022 and are scheduled
to ship in the second quarter of 2023 for their annual promotional event. In addition, our revenue was impacted by lower orders from retailers and distributors
largely resulting from a decline in consumer sentiment, and resultant spending, driven by high inflation, rising interest rates, rising energy costs, the potential
recessionary outlook and geopolitical instability, which was exacerbated by the Russia-Ukraine war. In response to the challenging market conditions since the
third quarter of 2022, we initiated various cost reduction plans. In August 2022, we initiated a restructuring of our operations designed to better realign our cost
structure with near-term revenue and cash flow generation, advance key strategic priorities, increase efficiencies and improve our profitability going forward. As
part of this August 2022 restructuring, we reduced our workforce and terminated approximately 100 employees, which represented 8% of our workforce and
eliminated a number of open positions entering the third quarter of 2022. As a follow-on action to our August 2022 restructuring of operations and in anticipation
that market conditions will remain challenging in 2023, we initiated a new restructuring program at the beginning of February 2023 and reduced our workforce by
approximately 85 employees, which represented 7% of our global workforce as of December 31, 2022. In addition to the reduction in force, our 2023 operating
plan incorporates scaled back working media and other demand-generation activities, limited investment in non-robotic product categories and minimal new
hiring plans in 2023. At April 1, 2023, we had 1,156 employees, a total reduction of 216 employees since the end of fiscal 2021. In addition to the reduction of our
headcount, we signed a sublease agreement for a portion of our headquarters during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 and plan to further consolidate our global
facilities footprint during fiscal 2023. We currently anticipate that our August 2022 and February 2023 restructuring actions will deliver net cost savings of
approximately $42.0 million in 2023, including actions associated with the facilities consolidation. In addition, we continue to carefully manage our inventory to a
level that aligns with current run rates of the business. During the first quarter of 2023, we temporarily reduced robot production from our contract manufacturing
partners in China and Malaysia and used our on-hand inventory to fulfill first-quarter 2023 orders. As of April 1, 2023, our inventory balance was $229.7 million,
a reduction of $55.6 million, from the end of fiscal 2022. As anticipated, we began increasing production in April 2023.

Merger Agreement

On August 4, 2022, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement, by and among the Company, Parent and Merger Sub, pursuant to which Merger Sub
will merge with and into the Company, with the Company surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. As a result of the Merger, each share of
the Common Stock, outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (subject to certain exceptions, including shares of Common Stock owned by the
Company, Merger Sub, Parent or any of their respective direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiaries and shares of Common Stock owned by stockholders of the
Company who have validly demanded and not withdrawn appraisal rights in accordance with Section 262 of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware) will, at the Effective Time, automatically be cancelled and converted into the right to receive $61.00 in cash, without interest and subject to applicable
withholding taxes. If the Merger is consummated, the Company’s Common Stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC and deregistered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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Key Financial Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAP"), we use the following key metrics, including non-GAAP financial measures, to evaluate and analyze our core operating performance
and trends, and to develop short-term and long-term operational plans. The most directly comparable financial measures to the following non-GAAP metrics
calculated under U.S. GAAP are gross profit and operating loss. During the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, we had gross profit of $36.6
million and $107.5 million, respectively, and operating loss of $81.3 million and $23.3 million, respectively. A summary of key metrics for the three months
ended April 1, 2023, as compared to the three months ended April 2, 2022, is as follows:

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

(dollars in thousands, except average gross selling prices)
(unaudited)

Total Revenue $ 160,292 $ 291,969 

Non-GAAP Gross Profit $ 37,931 $ 100,588 
Non-GAAP Gross Margin 23.7 % 34.5 %

Non-GAAP Operating Loss $ (62,224) $ (18,516)
Non-GAAP Operating Margin (38.8)% (6.3)%

Total robot units shipped (in thousands) 436 974 
Average gross selling prices for robot units $ 402 $ 333 

Our non-GAAP financial measures reflect adjustments based on the following items. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a
substitute for, or superior to, financial measures calculated in accordance with GAAP, and the financial results calculated in accordance with GAAP and
reconciliations from these results, provided below, should be carefully evaluated.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets: Amortization of acquired intangible assets consists of amortization of intangible assets including completed
technology, customer relationships, and reacquired distribution rights acquired in connection with business combinations as well as any non-cash impairment
charges associated with intangible assets in connection with our past acquisitions. Amortization charges for our acquisition-related intangible assets are
inconsistent in size and are significantly impacted by the timing and valuation of our acquisitions.

Net Merger, Acquisition and Divestiture (Income) Expense: Net merger, acquisition and divestiture (income) expense primarily consists of transaction fees,
professional fees, and transition and integration costs directly associated with mergers, acquisitions and divestitures, including with respect to the Merger. It also
includes business combination adjustments including adjustments after the measurement period has ended.

Stock-Based Compensation: Stock-based compensation is a non-cash charge relating to stock-based awards.

Tariff Refunds: Our Section 301 List 3 Tariff Exclusion was reinstated in March 2022, which temporarily eliminates tariffs on our Roomba products
imported from China beginning on October 12, 2021 until December 31, 2022. This temporary exclusion, which was subsequently extended until September 30,
2023, entitles us to a refund of all related tariffs previously paid since October 12, 2021. We exclude the refunds for tariff costs expensed during fiscal 2021 from
our 2022 non-GAAP measures because those tariff refunds associated with tariff costs incurred in the past have no impact to our current period earnings.

IP Litigation Expense, Net: IP litigation expense, net relates to legal costs incurred to litigate patent, trademark, copyright and false advertising
infringements, or to oppose or defend against interparty actions related to intellectual property. Any settlement payment or proceeds resulting from these
infringements are included or netted against the costs.

Restructuring and Other: Restructuring charges are related to one-time actions associated with realigning resources, enhancing operational productivity and
efficiency, or improving our cost structure in support of our strategy. Such actions are not reflective of ongoing operations and include costs primarily associated
with severance costs, certain professional fees, costs associated with consolidation of facilities, warehouses and any other leased properties, and other non-
recurring costs directly associated with resource realignments tied to strategic initiatives or changes in business conditions.
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Gain/Loss on Strategic Investments: Gain/loss on strategic investments includes fair value adjustments, realized gains and losses on the sales of these
investments and losses on the impairment of these investments.

Income tax adjustments: Income tax adjustments include the tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments, calculated using the appropriate statutory tax rate for
each adjustment. We reassess the need for any valuation allowance recorded based on the non-GAAP profitability and have eliminated the effect of the valuation
allowance recorded in the U.S. jurisdiction. We also exclude certain tax items, including impact from stock-based compensation windfalls/shortfalls, that are not
reflective of income tax expense incurred as a result of current period earnings.

We exclude these items from our non-GAAP measures to facilitate an evaluation of our current operating performance and comparisons to our past operating
performance. These items may vary significantly in magnitude or timing and do not necessarily reflect anticipated future operating activities. In addition, we
believe that providing these non-GAAP measures affords investors a view of our operating results that may be more easily compared with our peer companies.
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The following table reconciles gross profit, operating loss, net loss and net loss per share on a GAAP and non-GAAP basis for the three months ended
April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022:

Three Months Ended
April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

 GAAP Gross Profit $ 36,551 $ 107,515 
   Amortization of acquired intangible assets 282 821 
   Stock-based compensation 586 441 
   Net merger, acquisition and divestiture expense 321 — 
   Tariff refunds — (11,727)
   Restructuring and other 191 3,538 
 Non-GAAP Gross Profit $ 37,931 $ 100,588 
 Non-GAAP Gross Margin 23.7 % 34.5 %

 GAAP Operating Loss $ (81,297) $ (23,287)
   Amortization of acquired intangible assets 460 1,331 
   Stock-based compensation 7,932 7,208 
   Tariff refunds — (11,727)
   Net merger, acquisition and divestiture expense 6,784 109 
   IP litigation expense, net 91 3,487 
   Restructuring and other 3,806 4,363 
 Non-GAAP Operating Loss $ (62,224) $ (18,516)
 Non-GAAP Operating Margin (38.8)% (6.3)%

 GAAP Net Loss $ (81,112) $ (30,406)
   Amortization of acquired intangible assets 460 1,331 
   Stock-based compensation 7,932 7,208 
   Tariff refunds — (11,727)
   Net merger, acquisition and divestiture expense 6,784 109 
   IP litigation expense, net 91 3,487 
   Restructuring and other 3,806 4,363 
   Loss on strategic investments — 16,835 
   Income tax effect 16,248 (9,185)
 Non-GAAP Net Loss $ (45,791) $ (17,985)

 GAAP Net Loss Per Diluted Share $ (2.95) $ (1.12)
   Dilutive effect of non-GAAP adjustments 1.28 0.46 
 Non-GAAP Net Loss Per Diluted Share $ (1.67) $ (0.66)

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. Our estimates and assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results and outcomes may differ from
our estimates and assumptions.

The critical accounting policies affected most significantly by estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are
described in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 14, 2023. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate the critical accounting policies used to prepare our consolidated financial statements. There have been no
material changes in these critical accounting policies and estimates.
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Overview of Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our results of operations as a percentage of revenue:

 Three Months Ended
 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022

Revenue 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cost of revenue:
Cost of product revenue 77.0 62.9 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 0.2 0.3 

Total cost of revenue 77.2 63.2 
Gross profit 22.8 36.8 
Operating expenses:

Research and development 26.2 14.6 
Selling and marketing 27.9 20.9 
General and administrative 19.3 9.1 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 0.1 0.2 
Total operating expenses 73.5 44.8 

Operating loss (50.7) (8.0)
Other expense, net (0.7) (5.7)
Loss before income taxes (51.4) (13.7)
Income tax benefit (0.8) (3.3)
Net loss (50.6)% (10.4)%

Comparison of Three Months Ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022

Revenue

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

Change
Percent

 Change
  (Dollars in thousands)  

Revenue $ 160,292 $ 291,969 $ (131,677) (45.1)%

Revenue for the three months ended April 1, 2023 decreased $131.7 million to $160.3 million, or 45.1%, from $292.0 million for the three months ended
April 2, 2022. Geographically, in the three months ended April 1, 2023, domestic revenue decreased $81.2 million, or 53.0%, and international revenue decreased
$50.5 million, or 36.4%, which reflected decreases of 34.9% in Japan and 28.9% in EMEA, respectively. The decrease in revenue also reflected a 55.2% decrease
in total robots shipped, offset by a 20.7% increase in gross average selling price for the three months ended April 1, 2023, compared to the three months ended
April 2, 2022. The decrease in revenue and robots shipped during the first quarter of 2023 was impacted by a scheduled shift of certain orders with a customer
which occurred in the first quarter of 2022 and are scheduled to ship in the second quarter of 2023 for their annual promotional event. In addition, our revenue was
impacted by lower orders from retailers and distributors largely resulting from a decline in consumer sentiment, and resultant spending, driven by high inflation,
rising interest rates, rising energy costs, the potential recessionary outlook and geopolitical instability, which was exacerbated by the Russia-Ukraine war.
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Cost of Product Revenue
 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Cost of product revenue $ 123,459 $ 183,633 $ (60,174) (32.8)%
As a percentage of revenue 77.0 % 62.9 %

Cost of product revenue decreased to $123.5 million in the three months ended April 1, 2023, compared to $183.6 million in the three months ended April 2,
2022. The decrease in cost was primarily driven by the 45.1% decrease in revenue, offset by the $11.7 million benefit to cost of product revenue related to tariffs
expensed in fiscal 2021 during the three months ended April 2, 2022.

Gross Profit

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

 Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Gross profit $ 36,551 $ 107,515 $ (70,964) (66.0)%
Gross margin 22.8 % 36.8 %

Gross margin decreased to 22.8% in the three months ended April 1, 2023, compared to 36.8% in the three months ended April 2, 2022. Gross margin
decreased 14.0 percentage points driven by lower leverage on our fixed costs, increased pricing and promotion costs, and the $11.7 million recognized benefit
from tariff refunds during the three months ended April 2, 2022. The decrease is offset by favorable impact from improved channel mix to our direct-to-consumer
channel during the three months ended April 1, 2023.We expect gross margin pressure will continue over the coming quarters. Although we have taken a wide
range of actions to drive gross margin improvement through a multitude of product cost optimization, manufacturing and supply chain initiatives that have been
implemented over the past few quarters, our ability to deliver sustainable gross margin improvement will largely depend on our ability to drive revenue growth.

Research and Development

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

 Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Research and development $ 41,934 $ 42,529 $ (595) (1.4)%
As a percentage of revenue 26.2 % 14.6 %

Research and development expenses decreased $0.6 million, or 1.4%, to $41.9 million (26.2% of revenue) in the three months ended April 1, 2023 from
$42.5 million (14.6% of revenue) in the three months ended April 2, 2022. This decrease was primarily due to a $3.1 million decrease in people-related costs
associated with lower headcount during the three months ended April 1, 2023, offset by $1.7 million increase in short-term incentive compensation costs and $0.7
million increase in severance-related costs associated with restructuring activities.

Selling and Marketing

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Selling and marketing $ 44,765 $ 61,065 $ (16,300) (26.7)%
As a percentage of revenue 27.9 % 20.9 %

Selling and marketing expenses decreased $16.3 million, or 26.7%, to $44.8 million (27.9% of revenue) in the three months ended April 1, 2023 from $61.1
million (20.9% of revenue) in the three months ended April 2, 2022. This decrease was primarily attributable to scaled back working media and other demand-
generation activities totaling approximately $12.0 million as well as a $3.9 million decrease in people-related costs associated with lower headcount during the
three months
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ended April 1, 2023. The decrease was slightly offset by a $1.5 million increase in severance-related costs associated with restructuring activities.

General and Administrative

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

 Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative $ 30,971 $ 26,698 $ 4,273 16.0 %
As a percentage of revenue 19.3 % 9.1 %

General and administrative expenses increased $4.3 million, or 16.0%, to $31.0 million (19.3% of revenue) in the three months ended April 1, 2023, from
$26.7 million (9.1% of revenue) in the three months ended April 2, 2022. This increase was primarily driven by a $5.1 million increase in acquisition-related
costs, including retention bonuses and legal fees, associated with the pending Merger, $1.3 million increase in short-term incentive compensation costs and $0.5
million increase in severance-related costs associated with restructuring activities. The increase was offset by a $2.8 million decrease in legal fees driven by lower
intellectual property litigation costs during the three months ended April 1, 2023.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Cost of revenue $ 282 $ 821 $ (539) (65.7)%
Operating expense 178 510 (332) (65.1)%
Total amortization expense $ 460 $ 1,331 $ (871) (65.4)%
As a percentage of revenue 0.3 % 0.5 %

The decrease in amortization of acquired intangible assets in the three months ended April 1, 2023 as compared to the three months ended April 2, 2022, was
primarily related to acquired intangible assets impaired in the third quarter of 2022, resulting in lower amortization expense during the three months ended
April 1, 2023.

Other Expense, Net

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Other expense, net $ (1,077) $ (16,746) $ 15,669 (93.6)%
As a percentage of revenue (0.7)% (5.7)%

Other expense, net during the three months ended April 2, 2022 was attributable to realized loss of $16.8 million associated with the sale of a strategic
investment. Other expense, net includes interest income, interest expense, foreign currency gains (losses) as well as gains (losses) from strategic investments.

Income Tax Benefit

 Three Months Ended

 April 1, 2023 April 2, 2022
Dollar

 Change
Percent

 Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Income tax benefit $ (1,262) $ (9,627) $ 8,365 (86.9)%
Effective income tax rate 1.5 % 24.0 %

We recorded an income tax benefit of $1.3 million and $9.6 million for the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, respectively. The $1.3
million income tax benefit for the three months ended April 1, 2023 resulted in an effective income tax rate of 1.5%. The $9.6 million income tax benefit for the
three months ended April 2, 2022 resulted in an effective
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income tax rate of 24.0%. For the three months ended April 1, 2023, the effective income tax rate included the impact of full valuation allowance against our U.S.
net deferred tax assets which was initially established during the third quarter of 2022.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At April 1, 2023, our cash and cash equivalents were $47.9 million and we had $27.0 million of outstanding borrowings under our $100.0 million secured
revolving line of credit which expires in September 2024. Our working capital, which represents our total current assets less total current liabilities, was $150.2
million as of April 1, 2023, compared to $232.1 million as of December 31, 2022. Cash and cash equivalents held by our foreign subsidiaries totaled $14.1 million
as of April 1, 2023. The undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries remain permanently reinvested outside of the United States as of April 1, 2023. We
believe our existing cash balance, expected future operating cash flows and our credit facility will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital
expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. See more detailed discussion below.

On August 4, 2022, we entered into the Merger Agreement with Amazon and Merger Sub, providing for the acquisition of iRobot by Amazon. We have
agreed to various covenants and agreements, including, among others, agreements to conduct our business in the ordinary course of business between the
execution of the Merger Agreement and the closing of the Merger. Outside of certain limited exceptions, we may not take certain actions without Amazon’s
consent, including (i) acquiring businesses and disposing of significant assets, (ii) incurring expenditures above specified thresholds; (iii) incurring additional debt
above specified thresholds, (iv) issuing additional securities, or (v) repurchasing shares of our outstanding common stock. We do not believe these restrictions will
prevent us from meeting our ongoing costs of operations, working capital needs or capital expenditure requirements.

We manufacture and distribute our products through contract manufacturers and third-party logistics providers. We believe this approach gives us the
advantages of relatively low capital investment and significant flexibility in scheduling production and managing inventory levels. By leasing our office facilities,
we also minimize the cash needed for expansion, and only invest periodically in leasehold improvements, a portion of which is often reimbursed by the landlords
of these facilities. Accordingly, our capital spending is generally limited to machinery and tooling, leasehold improvements, business applications software and
computer and equipment. During the three months ended April 1, 2023 and April 2, 2022, we spent $1.5 million and $3.1 million, respectively, on capital
expenditures.

Our strategy for delivering consumer products to our distributors and retail customers gives us the flexibility to provide container shipments directly from
our contract manufacturers in Southern China and Malaysia to our customers or, alternatively, allows our distributors and certain retail customers to take
possession of product on a domestic basis. Accordingly, our inventory consists of goods shipped to our third-party logistics providers for the fulfillment of
distributor, retail and direct-to-consumer sales. Our contract manufacturers are also responsible for purchasing and stocking components required for the
production of our products, and they typically invoice us when the finished goods are shipped.

Cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended April 1, 2023 was $94.5 million, of which the principal components were our net loss of
$81.1 million and the cash outflow of $26.0 million from change in working capital, partially offset by non-cash charges of $12.6 million. The change in working
capital was driven by net cash outflow of $109.9 million in accounts payable, partially offset by net cash inflow of $52.9 million from inventory and $37.1 million
from accounts receivable. The decrease in inventory was primarily due to temporarily reduced production during the first quarter of 2023 and the use of our on-
hand inventory to fulfill first-quarter 2023 orders.

Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended April 1, 2023 was $1.5 million, primarily related to the purchase of machinery and tooling
for new products.

Cash provided by financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended April 1, 2023 was $25.4 million. During the three months ended April 1, 2023, we drew
from our secured revolving credit facility with net proceeds of $27.0 million and paid $1.6 million upon vesting of restricted stock where 36,700 shares were
retained by us to cover employee tax withholdings.

Working Capital Facilities

Credit Facility

As of April 1, 2023, we had a $100.0 million secured revolving line of credit which expires in September 2024. On January 17, 2023, we entered into a
Fourth Amendment to the Credit Agreement with Bank of America N.A., which reduced the amount of the facility from $150.0 million to $100.0 million and
increased the interest rate of (1) Term SOFR Loans to
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4.50%, (2) Base Rate Loans to 3.50%, and (3) unused Commitments (as defined in the Credit Agreement) to 3.50%. In addition, the Fourth Amendment
established a borrowing base for the revolving facility equal to the total of 80% of eligible receivables, 50% of eligible inventory, and upon the satisfaction of
certain conditions, up to 30% of eligible in-transit inventory, all subject to any applicable reserves. Additionally, the Fourth Amendment requires us to maintain
$25.0 million of cash in the U.S. at all times, which is tested monthly, and replaced the requirement that the borrowing under the Credit Agreement be under
$75.0 million (1) on December 30, 2022 and (2) for ten consecutive days during the first quarter in 2023 with a requirement that the borrowing under the Credit
Agreement be $25.0 million or less (1) on December 29, 2023 and (2) for thirty consecutive days between January 17, 2023 and September 17, 2024. The Fourth
Amendment also extended the maturity date of the Credit Agreement from June 30, 2023 to September 17, 2024, and continues to be secured by substantially all
of our U.S. assets.

As of April 1, 2023, we had outstanding borrowings of $27.0 million under the revolving credit facility, with $73.0 million available for borrowing. As of
April 1, 2023, we were in compliance with the covenants under the Credit Agreement.

Lines of Credit

We have an unsecured letter of credit facility with Bank of America, N.A., available to fund letters of credit up to an aggregate outstanding amount of
$5.0 million. As of April 1, 2023, we had letters of credit outstanding of $0.4 million under our letter of credit facility and other lines of credit with Bank of
America, N.A.

We have an unsecured guarantee line of credit with Mizuho, Bank Ltd., available to fund import tax payments up to an aggregate outstanding amount of
250.0 million Japanese Yen. As of April 1, 2023, we had no outstanding balance under the guarantee line of credit. 

Liquidity

We have a long history of profitable operations, positive operating cash flows and substantial liquidity that was further strengthened during the first year of
the COVID-19 pandemic as consumer demand for our products increased considerably. For the three months ended April 1, 2023, our revenue declined 45% from
the three months ended April 2, 2022, due in part to a scheduled shift of certain orders with a customer which occurred in the first quarter of 2022 and are
scheduled to ship in the second quarter of 2023 for their annual promotional event. In addition, revenue was impacted by lower orders from retailers and
distributors largely resulting from a decline in consumer sentiment, and resultant spending, driven by high inflation, rising interest rates, rising energy costs, the
potential recessionary outlook and geopolitical instability, which was exacerbated by the Russia-Ukraine war. The lower revenue has resulted in operating losses
of $81.3 million and operating cash outflows of $94.5 million for the three months ended April 1, 2023. As a result, our cash and cash equivalents have declined
from $117.9 million as of December 31, 2022 to $47.9 million as of April 1, 2023.

As of April 1, 2023, we had $27.0 million in outstanding borrowings from our $100.0 million revolving line of credit which expires on September 17, 2024.

We have considered and assessed our ability to continue as a going concern for the one year from the date that the unaudited consolidated financial
statements are issued. Our assessment included the preparation of cash flow forecasts taking into account actions already implemented. We considered additional
actions within our control that we would implement, if necessary, to maintain liquidity and operations in the ordinary course. We have already undertaken the
following actions to improve profitability and operating cash flows and align the organization to the lower revenue level:

• In August 2022, we initiated a restructuring of our operations designed to better realign our cost structure with near-term revenue and cash flow
generation, advance key strategic priorities, increase efficiencies and improve our profitability going forward. As part of the August 2022 Restructuring
Plan, we reduced our workforce and terminated approximately 100 employees, which represented 8% of our workforce and eliminated a number of open
positions entering the third quarter of 2022. As a follow-on action to our August 2022 Restructuring Plan and in anticipation that market conditions will
remain challenging in 2023, we initiated a new restructuring program at the beginning of February 2023 and reduced our workforce by approximately 85
employees, which represented 7% of the Company's global workforce as of December 31, 2022. In addition to the reduction in force, our 2023 operating
plan incorporates scaled back working media and other demand-generation activities, limited investment in non-robotic product categories and minimal
new hiring plans in 2023. At April 1, 2023, we had 1,156 employees, a total reduction of 216 employees since the end of fiscal 2021. In addition to the
reduction of our headcount, we signed a sublease agreement for a portion of our headquarters during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 and plans to further
consolidate our global facilities footprint during fiscal 2023. We currently anticipate that our August 2022 and February 2023 restructuring actions will
deliver net cost savings of approximately $42.0 million in 2023, including actions associated with the facilities consolidation.
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• Inventory has consumed a significant amount of cash and we continue to manage our inventory level carefully. As of April 1, 2023, the inventory balance
was $229.7 million, or 169 days, a reduction of $55.6 million, from the end of fiscal 2022. In 2023, we will continue to manage our inventory to a level
that aligns with current run rates of the business. As such, we temporarily reduced robot production during the first quarter of 2023 from our contract
manufacturing partners in China and Malaysia and began increasing production in April 2023.

While we estimate such actions will be sufficient to allow us to maintain liquidity and our operations in the ordinary course for at least 12 months from the
issuance of these financial statements, there can be no assurance we will generate sufficient future cash flows from operations due to potential factors, including,
but not limited to, further inflation, the continued rising interest rates, ongoing recessionary conditions or continued reduced demand for our products. If we are
not successful in increasing demand for our products, or if macroeconomic conditions further constrain consumer demand, we may continue to experience adverse
impacts to revenue and profitability. Additional actions within our control to maintain our liquidity and operations include optimizing our production volumes
with contract manufacturers by reducing inventory supply forecast for cancellable purchase orders, further reducing discretionary spending in all areas of the
business, decreasing working media spending and realigning resources through ongoing attrition without rehiring activity. Should we require further funding in the
future, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain additional debt financing on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Contractual Obligations

The disclosure of our contractual obligations and commitments is set forth under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Contractual Obligations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022. Our principal
commitments generally consist of obligations under our credit facility, leases for office space, inventory related purchase obligations, and minimum contractual
obligations. Other obligations consist primarily of subscription services. There have been no material changes in our contractual obligations and commitments
since December 31, 2022.

As of April 1, 2023, we had outstanding purchase orders aggregating approximately $228.7 million. The purchase orders are typically related to marketing
and media spend and the purchase of inventory in the normal course of business. Included in these outstanding purchase orders is $82.5 million related to
inventory purchases at our contract manufacturers, of which $43.1 million are not cancellable without penalty.

We utilize contract manufacturers to build our products and accessories. These contract manufacturers acquire components and build products based on a
forecasted production plan, which typically covers a rolling 24-month period. If we cancel all or part of the orders, or materially reduce forecasted orders, in
certain circumstances we may be liable to our contract manufacturers for the cost of the excess components purchased by our contract manufacturers. During the
first quarter of 2023, we paid $3.9 million to our contract manufacturers for such liabilities and recorded as inventory components.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently adopted accounting pronouncements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

Our international revenue and expenses are denominated in multiple currencies, including British Pounds, Canadian Dollars, Chinese Renminbi, Euros,
Japanese Yen and Swiss Franc. As such, we have exposure to adverse changes in exchange rates associated with the revenue and operating expenses of our foreign
operations. Any fluctuations in other currencies will have minimal direct impact on our international revenue.

In addition to international business conducted in foreign currencies, we have international revenue denominated in U.S. dollars. As the U.S. dollar
strengthens or weakens against other currencies, our international distributors may be impacted, which could affect their profitability and our ability to maintain
current pricing levels on our international consumer products.

We regularly monitor the forecast of non-U.S. dollar revenue and expenses and the level of non-U.S. dollar monetary asset and liability balances to
determine if any actions, including possibly entering into foreign currency contracts should be taken to minimize the impact of fluctuating exchange rates on our
results of operations. Periodically, we enter into forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts may or may not be
designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes. We use cash flow hedges primarily to reduce the effects of foreign exchange rate changes on sales in
Euros and Japanese Yen. These contracts typically have maturities of 1.5 years or less. At April 1, 2023 and
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December 31, 2022, we had outstanding cash flow hedges with a total notional value of $181.7 million and $362.9 million, respectively.

We also enter into economic hedges that are not designated as hedges from an accounting standpoint to reduce or eliminate the effects of foreign exchange
rate changes typically related to short term trade receivables and payables. These contracts have maturities of twelve months or less. At April 1, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, we had outstanding economic hedges with a total notional value of $124.9 million and $242.0 million, respectively.

At April 1, 2023, assuming all other variables are constant, if the U.S. Dollar weakened or strengthened by 10%, the fair market value of our foreign
currency contracts would increase or decrease by approximately $20.4 million.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report were
effective at a reasonable assurance level in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act (i) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms; and
(ii) accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely discussions
regarding required disclosure. We believe that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company
have been detected.

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the period
covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time and in the ordinary course of business, we are subject to various claims, charges and litigation. The outcome of litigation cannot be
predicted with certainty and some lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably to us, which could materially affect our financial condition or
results of operations. See Footnote 10 to our consolidated financial statements for a description of certain of our legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We operate in a rapidly changing environment that involves a number of risks that could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results,
some of which are beyond our control. In addition to the other information set forth in this report, the risks and uncertainties that we believe are most important
for you to consider are discussed in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, which could
materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, which we currently deem
immaterial or which are similar to those faced by other companies in our industry or business in general, may also impair our business operations. There are no
material changes to the Risk Factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, other than as set forth below:

If we are unable to attract and retain additional skilled personnel, we may be unable to grow our business.

To execute our growth plan, we must attract and retain additional, highly-qualified personnel. Competition for hiring these employees is intense, especially
with regard to engineers with high levels of experience in designing, developing and integrating robots and engineers with expertise in artificial intelligence,
machine learning, data science and cloud applications. Many of the companies with which we compete for hiring experienced employees have greater resources
than we have. If we fail to attract new technical personnel or fail to retain and motivate our current employees, our business and future growth prospects could be
severely harmed.

In addition, we have experienced increased employee turnover as a result of general market conditions, the impact of reductions in force executed in August
2022 and February 2023, and the impact of uncertainties related to our proposed Merger with Amazon. Given the difficult market conditions, the steps we are
taking to manage our costs and the ongoing uncertainty of the timing and outcomes of the regulatory reviews required to complete our Merger with Amazon, we
expect to continue to experience increased employee turnover in the future. New hires require significant training and, in most cases, take significant time before
they achieve full productivity. New employees may not become as productive as we expect, and we may be unable to hire or retain significant numbers of
qualified individuals. Moreover, we may be forced to adjust salaries or other
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compensation in order to retain key talent. If our retention efforts are not successful or our team member turnover rate continues to increase in the future, our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Any efforts to expand our product offerings beyond our current markets or to develop new products may not succeed, which could negatively impact our
operating results.

Efforts to expand our product offerings beyond our current markets are limited and those efforts may not succeed and may divert management resources
from existing operations and require us to commit significant financial resources to an unproven business, either of which could significantly impair our operating
results. Any new product that we develop may not be introduced in a timely or cost-effective manner, may contain defects, or may not achieve the market
acceptance necessary to generate sufficient revenue. Moreover, efforts to expand beyond our existing markets may never result in new products that achieve
market acceptance, create additional revenue or become profitable.

On November 15, 2021, we acquired Aeris Cleantec AG, a provider of premium air purifiers. This acquisition represents our first major expansion of
product offerings beyond consumer robotics. Air purifiers represent a new market segment for us and is subject to intense competition.

Our success in the air purifier market will depend on a number of factors including our ability to develop innovative solutions, integrate those solutions into
our home ecosystem, and market and sell those solutions to our existing and new customers. Establishing a new market segment will require significant
investment in R&D and sales & marketing in the near term, and currently those investments have been curtailed due to our financial constraints. These
investments may not be successful, and our revenue and profitability may suffer. Because of our current fiscal constraints, our ability to support investments of
this magnitude are limited, and a more limited level of investment in the near-term is unlikely to yield a meaningful return.

If the air purifier business – or any other business we acquire – does not perform as expected or we are unable to effectively integrate the acquired business
into our operations or achieve the expected synergies of the acquisition, our operating results could be harmed. Expansion into new market segments involve risks
and uncertainties, including, among other things, potential distraction of management from our core robotic floorcare business, greater than expected liabilities
and expenses, inadequate return on capital, and unidentified issues not discovered in our investigations and evaluations of those acquisitions.

We spend significant amounts on advertising and other marketing campaigns, which may not be successful or cost effective.

We spend significant amounts on advertising and other marketing campaigns, such as television, print advertising, and social media, as well as increased
promotional activities, to acquire new customers, and we expect our marketing expenses to increase as a percentage of revenue in the future as we continue to
spend significant amounts to increase awareness of our consumer robot products. For fiscal 2022, 2021 and 2020, sales and marketing expenses were
$293.3 million, $289.8 million, and $265.5 million, respectively, representing approximately 24.8%, 18.5% and 18.6%, of our revenue, respectively. While we
seek to structure our advertising campaigns in the manner that we believe is most likely to encourage people to purchase our products, we may fail to identify
advertising opportunities that satisfy our anticipated return on advertising spend as we scale our investments in marketing or to fully understand or estimate the
conditions and behaviors that drive customer behavior. If any of our advertising campaigns prove less successful than anticipated in attracting customers, we may
not be able to recover our advertising spend, and our revenue may fail to meet market expectations, either of which could have an adverse effect on our business.
There can be no assurance that our advertising and other marketing efforts will result in increased sales of our products.

If critical components of our products that we currently purchase from a small number of suppliers become unavailable, we may incur delays in
shipment, which could damage our business.

We and our outsourced manufacturers obtain hardware components, various subsystems, raw materials and batteries from a limited group of suppliers, some
of which are sole suppliers. We do not have long-term agreements with these suppliers obligating them to continue to sell components or products to us. If we or
our outsourced manufacturers are unable to obtain components from third-party suppliers in the quantities and of the quality that we require, on a timely basis and
at acceptable prices, we may not be able to deliver our products on a timely or cost-effective basis to our customers, which could cause customers to terminate
their contracts with us, reduce our gross margin and seriously harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Moreover, if any of our suppliers
become financially unstable, we may have to find new suppliers. It may take several months to locate alternative suppliers, if required, or to re-tool our products to
accommodate components from different suppliers. We may experience significant delays in manufacturing and shipping our products to customers and incur
additional development, manufacturing and other costs to establish alternative sources of supply if we lose any of these sources. We cannot predict if we will be
able to obtain replacement components within the time frames that we require at an affordable cost, or at all.
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In addition, our lack of long-term agreements with certain component suppliers has caused us to purchase certain long-lead-time components well in
advance of consumer demand. This added inventory increases the strain on our liquidity, as well as the risk of inventory becoming excess and obsolete.

If we fail to protect, or incur significant costs in defending, our intellectual property and other proprietary rights, our business and results of operations
could be materially harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. We rely primarily on patents, trademarks, copyrights,
trade secrets and unfair competition laws, as well as license agreements and other contractual provisions, to protect our intellectual property and other proprietary
rights. Significant technology used in our products, however, is not the subject of any patent protection, and we may be unable to obtain patent protection on such
technology in the future. Moreover, existing U.S. legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of intellectual property rights offer
only limited protection, may not provide us with any competitive advantages, and may be challenged by third parties. In addition, the laws of countries other than
the United States in which we market our products may afford little or no effective protection of our intellectual property. Patents which may be granted to us in
certain foreign countries may be subject to opposition proceedings brought by third parties or result in suits by us, which may be costly and result in adverse
consequences for us. Accordingly, despite our efforts, we may be unable to prevent third parties from infringing upon or misappropriating our intellectual property
or otherwise gaining access to our technology. Unauthorized third parties may try to copy or reverse engineer our products or portions of our products or otherwise
obtain and use our intellectual property. If we fail to protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights, our business, results of operations or financial
condition could be materially harmed.

In addition, defending our intellectual property rights may entail significant expense. We believe that certain products in the marketplace may infringe our
existing intellectual property rights. We have, from time to time, resorted to legal proceedings to protect our intellectual property and may continue to do so in the
future. For example, on October 15, 2019, we initiated a patent infringement lawsuit in federal district court in Massachusetts against SharkNinja Operating LLC
and its related entities ("SharkNinja") for infringement of five patents for technology related to robotic vacuum cleaners. In addition, we sought a preliminary
injunction against SharkNinja for infringement of three U.S. patents. SharkNinja has in parallel sought declarations of non-infringement of thirteen U.S. patents
owned by iRobot. On November 26, 2019, the federal district court in Massachusetts denied iRobot's motion for a preliminary injunction. On January 28, 2021,
we initiated litigation against SharkNinja at the U.S. International Trade Commission ("ITC") as well as in federal district court in Massachusetts based on claims
of patent infringement of five additional U.S. patents, and on January 5-12, 2022 the ITC held a trial on four of those patents. In March 2023, we received a
favorable final determination in our patent infringement action against SharkNinja at the ITC. The ruling, which found that SharkNinja had infringed valid claims
of iRobot’s asserted patents, recommends that the ITC issue an order barring the importation of various infringing SharkNinja robotic cleaning products.

There is no guarantee that we will prevail on other patent infringement claims against third parties. We may be required to expend significant resources to
monitor and protect our intellectual property rights. In addition, any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged by others or invalidated through
administrative processes or litigation. If we resort to legal proceedings to enforce our intellectual property rights or to determine the validity and scope of the
intellectual property or other proprietary rights of others, the proceedings could result in significant expense to us and divert the attention and efforts of our
management and technical employees, even if we were to prevail.

In addition, in the United States certain of our patents have been, and may continue to be, challenged by inter parte review or opposition proceedings. If our
patents are subjected to inter parte review or opposition proceedings, we may incur significant costs to defend them. Further, our failure to prevail in any such
proceedings could limit the patent protection available for our innovations.

Adverse developments affecting the financial services industry, such as actual events or concerns involving liquidity, defaults or non-performance by
financial institutions or transactional counterparties, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Actual events involving limited liquidity, defaults, non-performance or other adverse developments that affect financial institutions, transactional
counterparties or other companies in the financial services industry generally, or concerns or rumors about any events of these kinds or other similar risks, have in
the past led and may in the future lead to market-wide liquidity problems. On March 10, March 12, and May 1, 2023, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
("FDIC") took control and was appointed receiver of Silicon Valley Bank ("SVB"), Signature Bank, and First Republic Bank, respectively, after each bank was
unable to continue its operations. We are unable to predict the extent or nature of the impacts of the failures of SVB, Signature Bank, and First Republic Bank and
related circumstances at this time. Similarly, we cannot predict the impact that the high market volatility and instability of the banking sector more broadly could
have on economic activity and our business in particular. The failure of other banks and financial institutions and measures taken, or not taken, by governments,
businesses and other organizations in response to these events could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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If the financial institutions with which we do business enter receivership or become insolvent in the future, there is no guarantee that the Department of the
Treasury, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC will intercede to provide us and other depositors with access to balances in excess of the $250,000 FDIC insurance
limit, that we would be able to access our existing cash, cash equivalents and investments, that we would be able to maintain any required letters of credit or other
credit support arrangements, or that we would be able to adequately fund our business for a prolonged period of time or at all, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our current and/or projected business operations and results of operations and financial condition. In addition, if any parties with which we
conduct business are unable to access funds pursuant to such instruments or lending arrangements with such a financial institution, such parties' ability to continue
to fund their business and perform their obligations to us could be adversely affected, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Item 6. Exhibits
 
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
 Number  Description

10.1 Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and between Bank of America, N.A. and iRobot Corporation, dated
January 17, 2023. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on January 20, 2023)

10.2 Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Reimbursement Agreement by and between Bank of America, N.A. and iRobot
Corporation, dated January 17, 2023. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on January 20, 2023)

31.1*  Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
31.2*  Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
32.1**  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information contained in Exhibits

101.*)

 __________________________

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 

iROBOT CORPORATION

Date: May 9, 2023 By: /s/ Julie Zeiler
Julie Zeiler
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Colin M. Angle, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of iRobot Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

 
 

Date: May 9, 2023 /s/ COLIN M. ANGLE
Colin M. Angle

 Chief Executive Officer

 
 



Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

I, Julie Zeiler, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of iRobot Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

 
 

Date: May 9, 2023 /s/ JULIE ZEILER
Julie Zeiler

 Chief Financial Officer

 

 



Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of iRobot Corporation (the "Company") for the period ended April 1, 2023 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), we, Colin M. Angle, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Julie Zeiler, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to our
knowledge, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

This certification is being provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not to be deemed a part of the Report, nor is it to be deemed to be "filed" for any
purpose whatsoever.

Date: May 9, 2023 /s/ COLIN M. ANGLE
Colin M. Angle

 Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 9, 2023 /s/ JULIE ZEILER
Julie Zeiler

 Chief Financial Officer

 


